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Planet Of The Apes Time Line
1915] 

NACA (National Advisory Committee for Aeronautics) is born.

With the intent of being an advisory committee that would coordinate research underway elsewhere. However, it quickly became a leading research organization in aeronautics and the new field of astronautics; pushing back the boundaries of flight through the first supersonic flights and also some of the research that would lead to the human space program under its successor, NASA.

1920] 

November 25 – Armando is born.
This is based on Ricardo Montalban’s age in 1973 (Escape); Montalban’s year of birth is correct.
1928] 

October 4 – George Taylor is born.
This is based on Charlton Heston’s age in 1968 (Planet); minus the 1972 mission launch date. Heston was actually born in 1924.
1936] 

January 31 – John Christopher Brent is born.

This is based on James Franciscus’ age in 1970 (Beneath); minus the 1972 mission launch date. Franciscus was actually born in 1934. 

First and middle names found in script and marvel adaptations of ‘Beneath’.

1942] 

January 12 – Alan John Virdon is born in Jackson County. His parents own a farm and he grows up there. 

This is based on Ron Harper’s age in 1974, minus the 1980 mission launch date. Harper was actually born in 1936. 

Virdon’s middle name given by Carol Davis in the FanFiction story “Life Over, Life Begun.”

Information on his childhood is from “The Good Seeds.”

January 24 – Jason Arnold Breck is born.

This is based on Don Murry’s age in 1972 (Conquest); minus the 1991 movie timeline date. Murry was actually born in 1923.
Breck’s first name is found in the novelisation of ‘Conquest’ and his middle name is found in ‘Revolution on the Planet of the Apes’.

1943] 

April 3 – Otto Victor Hasslein is born.

This is based on Eric Braeden’s age in 1971 (Escape); minus the 1973 movie timeline date. Braeden was actually born in 1941.
Middle name found in novelisation of ‘Escape’.
1949] 

Alan Virdon, age seven, begins riding horses. 

Virdon states this in “The Horse Race.”

1950] 

George Taylor enters the U.S. Air Force.
1951] 

December 6 – Peter James Burke is born. He grows up in Jersey City, New Jersey and attends P.S. 103. 

This is based on David Naughton’s age in 1974, minus the 1980 mission launch date. Naughton was actually born in 1945. His hometown is mentioned multiple times and his school is mentioned in “The Surgeon.”

Burke’s middle name given by Carol Davis in her FanFiction story “Life Over, Life Begun.”
–*–

Stephen Benjamin Jones is born in Boulder, Colorado.

To my knowledge I consider the name ‘Jonesy’ as mentioned by Burke in “Escape from Tomorrow” a slang for Jones; thus I have given ‘Jonesy’ a full name and birthplace since, so far no one has done so in any written form…until now.

1958] 

October 1 – NASA (National Aeronautics and Space Administration) is born.
The new agency began operation with the mission to perform civilian research related to space flight and aeronautics.

NASA’s birth was directly related to national defense. After WWII, the US and USSR were engaged in their contest over ther idelogies and allegiances of nonaligned nations. During this period space exploration and flight was a major area of cntest which became known as the space race. 
1960] 

Captain George Taylor is assigned to NASA as a test pilot.

–*–
Alan Virdon enters either a military academy or a college. 

This is an assumption based on the fact that Virdon was 18 in 1960.

1962] 

Captain George Taylor is assigned to the X-15 Program.

The NASA X-15 Program involves the X-15 airplane to fly above the atmosphere, then glides back to Earth unpowered. The pilots gain valuable information about supersonic aeronautics.

1964] 

Alan Virdon graduates and enters either the U.S. Air Force or the U.S. Marines.

1965] 

Major George Taylor is assigned to the X-20 Program.

The X-20 airplane was designed to fly into Earth orbit.

1966] 

Alan Virdon marries Sally Hayes. 

It is speculation that they married a year before the birth of their son, Chris. The name of Virdon’s wife comes from “The Surgeon.”
Sally’s surname is given by Carol Davis in her FanFiction story “Countdown”.

1967] 

Alan Virdon’s son, Chris, is born. 

This is speculation based on the photograph of Virdon’s family in “Escape from Tomorrow” and “The Legacy.” The boy in the picture seems to be about 13 years old. Virdon states that he had a son about the age of Kraik in “The Legacy.” The actor who played Kraik was 13 at the time. The name of Virdon’s son is from “The Good Seeds.”

1968] 

Peter Burke pitches a no-hitter in high school. 

It is speculation that Burke was 17 at the time. Burke mentions this in “Up above the world so high.”

1969] 

July 21 – NASA successfully lands a man on the Moon.
“That’s one small step for man, one giant leap for mankind”. Neil Armstrong American astronaut.

August 21 – ANSA (American National Space Administration) is born. 

Due to the success of the first moon landing in July, ANSA is commissioned by the President as a parallel division of NASA to develop a new prototype spacecraft to help explore interstellar space. This ambitious project to go beyond our solar system is named: The Icarus Program.

The aim of ANSA is to develop protocols, procedures and technologies to advance interstellar spaceflight to go beyond the solar system. ANSA’s first target is Alpha Centauri.

–*–
ANSA’s first Director is Dr. Otto Hasslein.

–*–
September – Colonel George Taylor volunteers for the ANSA Interstellar Space Program.

Classified Information: Taylor was one of the test pilots that flew the Icarus Prototype. 

–*–
Peter Burke enters Michigan State University and becomes a running back for the football team. Burke takes R.O.T.C. classes. 

It is speculation that Burke entered collage at 18. Virdon calls Burke ‘a Michigan Running Back’ in “The Good Seeds.” It is safe to speculate he enrolled in R.O.T.C. because he is a Major by 1980.

1971] 

‘Armando’s Old Time Circus’  is formed.

“I run a circus” Armando tells.

“We know that” Kolp responds.

“From 20 years back” Hoskyns informs.

1972] 

January – Dr. Otto Hasslein is appointed by the President to be his Senior Scientific Adviser.
January 14 – Astronauts Colonel George Taylor, Lieutenant Robert Landon, Lieutenant Mathew Dodge, and Lieutenant Catherine Stewart are launched on the Astræa the first interstellar exploration flight to Alpha Centauri from Cape Kennedy. The crew enters suspended animation for the long voyage to 'somewhere in Orion's belt'. The mission is launched amid high support from the nation and the world. (Planet of the Apes)
A date of January 8 is also mentioned in “Hasslein Observed Time Line” and January 14 is mentioned in “ANSA Mission Profile” on the ‘Last flight of the Icarus’ website, but I took January 14 as it seemed more concrete.

February – It is mid-February and the Astræa mysteriously drops out of communications and deep space surveillance under mysterious circumstances. The media has a field day and the government institutes several special investigations into ANSA protocols. 

Later, it will be discovered that at near FTL (Faster-Than-Light) velocities, the Astræa has created/entered a Hasslein Curve in space/time and was thrown several thousand years into the future. ANSA hurriedly readies a rescue team to be dispatched along Taylor's last known trajectory.
Taylor says in ‘Planet’ that the Astræa has been in deep space for six months, it is assumed that their mission/tour was for this long and were returning home to Earth. 

March 14 – Astronauts Colonel Lyndon Maddox and Major John Brent are launched in the Aurora along the same flight path as the Astræa to probe its unexplained disappearance from detection. (Beneath the Planet of the Apes)

Some POTA Timelines state September, October or November as the month of rescue, but this doesn’t make sense, why wait 7-9 months to launch a ‘hurriedly’ rescue mission?
I gave Maddox a first name since he had none in ‘Beneath’.

1972-1980] 

Eight complex years marked by contradictory developments in two aspects of society. Space exploration expands. Unmanned space probes range to the stars and back. Manned flights over greater distances are becoming more common. 

At the same time however, the governments of Earth are becoming more totalitarian in order to cope with increasing economic, political and energy pressures.

–*–
All information concerning Taylor and Brent and the secrets of the future as revealed by Cornelius and Zira is locked away under heavy security clearance. Few are allowed access to it. Publicly, it is spread that the two talking chimpanzees were merely a hoax, and nothing more.

This probably explains why Virdon and Burke were initially surprised that they crash-landed on a planet with talking apes, only to realise the truth, when they found out they were back on Earth.

1973] 

January – Peter Burke Graduates College and enters either the Air Force or the Marines.

May 8 – Lisa (Caesar’s future wife) is born.

Natalie Trundy who portrayed Lisa in ‘Conquest’ and ‘Battle’ was born in 1940. So logically I decided to make her character the same age as Caesar to fit this timeline.

December 26 – The Astræa reappears mysteriously within nearby space. It lands off the southern California coast, slightly north of San Clemente and is met by mobilized United States Navy spaceflight recovery crews. 
The date is arrived at because in the movie Zira and the Chairman of the Presidential Commission clearly state the year of 1973. But the President also states “Yesterday, a US spacecraft splashed down off the southern California coast. It was one of two that have been missing in space for over two years now. To be exact, the one commanded by Colonel Taylor...” So by putting all this information together, the best and closest date to fit all three statements satisfactory is the above.
The Astræa is found to be piloted by three speaking chimpanzees who identify themselves as Doctors’ Cornelius, Zira and Milo. The apes are first taken to the nearby military air base and then to the Los Angeles Zoo. They are met by two animal psychiatrists, Doctors’ Lewis Dixson and Stephanie Branton. (Escape)

December 27 – Dr. Milo is killed by a gorilla. (Escape)
“Through an unfortunate accident, one of them was killed early this morning, in the Los Angeles Zoo.” President of the United States. 

December 28 – Cornelius and Zira are brought before the First Presidential Commission and are accepted as friends of the planet Earth. (Escape)

“I have therefore decided to convene a Presidential Commission of Inquiry in Los Angeles, tomorrow.  The two surviving apes will be presented to the Commission...” President of the United States.

December 29 – Second Presidential Commission is held in secret session. (Escape)
“…they will not be required to appear before the Commission tomorrow…” Bill Bonds. 

Cornelius and Zira move into the Beverly Wilshire hotel. (Escape)
“…they will, however, be taken from the zoo infirmary to a hotel…” Bill Bonds.

December 30 – Zira lectures at the “Bay Area Women’s Club”, and goes to the Los Angeles County Museum of Natural History with Dr. Hasslein. 

“…tomorrow, Zira is to speak at the ‘Bay Area Women’s Club’, and later, she’ll accompany Dr. Hasslein to the ‘Museum of Natural History’…” Newscaster.

Cornelius goes to the “fights” with Dr. Lewis Dixson. 
“…meanwhile, Cornelius will attend a prizefight…” Newscaster.

Through underhanded interrogation and analysis of the Astræa, Dr. Hasslein gets Zira drunk and learns of the ultimate fate of the human race and the planet. 
Dr. Hasslein convinces the President that the apes are a threat to Mankind, and orders another Presidential Commission. 

That evening, the Third Presidential Commission held is secret session. (Escape) 

“…the ape-onauts will in fact be escorted by Dr. Lewis Dixon to the installation known as Camp Eleven and held there, in his care, for interrogation by the CIA under the guidance and supervision of Dr. Otto Hasslein…” Chairman.

December 31 – The next morning Cornelius and Zira are taken to a military base known as Camp XI for further interrogation. 
Under interrogation, Cornelius and Zira reveal mankind's downfall and Apekind’s rise. 

Under sodium pentothal, Zira reveals the treatment of humans at the hands of apes.

The Fourth Presidential Commission is held in secret session.

“…the Commission unanimously recommends that the birth of the female ape’s unborn child should be prevented; and that, after its prenatal removal, both the male and the female should humanely be rendered incapable of bearing another…” Chairman.

That evening, in their quarters, Cornelius accidentally kills their orderly and they escape. 

Zira begins labor.

Dr. Stephanie Branton helps Cornelius and Zira by bringing them to “Armando's Circus”. 

Zira gives birth to Milo. (Escape From the Planet of the Apes)  

Chimpanzees have a pregnancy period of between 33-34 weeks (231-238 days) the average being 231.5 days. Thus it clearly shows that Zira was already pregnant before she, Cornelius and Milo left the Earth.

“How long have you known?” Hasslein questions.

“Since before the war” Zira answers.

If the Earth was not destroyed, Milo would have been born on the 5th of February 3979.

–*–
Alan Virdon is promoted to Colonel, he along with Captains’ Peter Burke and Stephen Jones enter the ANSA Interstellar Space Program and begin training for the mission to Alpha Centauri.

Virdon’s rank is established in “The Legacy.” He is either in the United States Air Force or the United States Marine Corps. The United States Navy does not have a Colonel rank.

–*–
Astronauts Bill Hudson, Jeff Allen and Judy Franklin enter the NASA Space Program and begin training. (Animated Planet of the Apes)
–*–
An Oil Magnate, wishing to live like a 16th century Baron, builds a castle near Oakland California. 

Virdon relates this information in “The Legacy.”

1974] 

January 1 –. Next morning Dr. Hasslein orders an intensified search for Cornelius and Zira.

“…I want you to mount a systematic an immediate search of every zoo, every menagerie, every circus…” Hasslein orders. 

That evening, Lewis and Stephanie help Cornelius and Zira hide in the McKinley & Son derelict shipyard. (Escape From the Planet of the Apes)   

January 2 – Next morning, Dr. Hasslein discovers Cornelius and Zira on the derelict ship, who kills Milo and fatally wounds Zira. Cornelius seeing this shoots and kills Dr. Hasslein, who is then shot by the police. (Escape From the Planet of the Apes) 

January 9 – Dr. Noel Stanton takes over as Director of ANSA after the ‘mysterious’ death of Dr. Otto Hasslein, and begins researching his ‘Theory of Time Thrust’.

January 31 – Armando packs up his circus. (Escape From the Planet of the Apes)   
“…In a month, in just one month, we move on to our winter quarters in Florida…” Armando informs.

Before their fateful day of Cornelius and Zira’s death, Zira swaps Milo for Salome’s baby chimpanzee at Armando’s circus; thus ensuring Milo’s survival under Armando’s care.

–*–
Astronauts Colonel Edward Jackson, Lieutenant John Van Lowen and Lieutenant Terry Maxwell are launched by the ANSA’s third interstellar space flight the Pegasus to Alpha Centauri.

The names of the astronauts comes from the FanFiction story “Prelude” by Dave Ballard, except the name of the Colonel which is given by Peter Karsten.

1975] 

Astronauts Captain Bill Hudson, Lieutenant Jeff Allen and Lieutenant Judy Franklin are assigned to the Icarus Program under ANSA guidelines.

1976] 

August 6 – Astronauts Captain Bill Hudson, Lieutenant Jeff Allen, and Lieutenant Judy Franklin are launched by the ANSA’s fourth interstellar space flight the Venturer that heads towards Alpha Centauri. 

The Venturer is a very advanced design NASA capsule equipped to fully utilize Dr. Stanton's ‘Theory of Time Thrust’, but while Hudson was reporting on its effects the Venturer enters a strange energy distortion and disappears. (Animated TV Series)

The date above is from the Venturer’s chronometer.

The Venturer was not going to Alpha Centauri as such in past missions, but was part of the ANSA Icarus Program which was testing the “Theory of Time Thrust’ while heading out in the direction of Alpha Centauri, when it disappeared.

The Venturer was a test ship that ANSA appropriated from NASA, thus that is why it still had the NASA logo on the vessel. 

November – Stephen Jones marries his childhood sweetheart Debbie.

It is speculation that they married ten months before the birth of their daughter Michelle. Debbie, the name of Jones’ wife is given by Carol Davis in her FanFiction story “Countdown”.
1977] 

August 6 – Stephen Jones’ daughter, Michelle, is born.
The name of Jones’ daughter is given by Carol Davis in her FanFiction story “Countdown”.

1978] 

Astronauts Peter Burke and Stephen Jones are both promoted to the rank of Major.
Burke’s rank is established in “The Interrogation.”
1979] 

December – Dr. Noel Stanton resigns as Director of ANSA, as pressure mounts from Congress to terminate the Icarus Program.

1980] 

January – Dr. Jameson Hughes becomes the new Director of ANSA. 

August 19 – Astronauts Colonel Alan Virdon, Major Peter Burke and Major Stephen Jones are launched by the ANSA’s fifth and final interstellar space flight the Hyperion to Alpha Centauri.

The date above is from the Hyperion’s chronometer from the opening credits.

As the ship approaches Alpha Centauri, it travels through “radioactive turbulence” and goes out of control. Is this a Hasslein Curve? Virdon directs Jones to activate the automatic homing device.

The Icarus Program is officially terminated shortly after the Hyperion leaves Earth, making it the last attempt to reach for Alpha Centauri. Unofficially the Icarus Program still exists under a different program and is kept under tight security. 

–*–
The Earth they leave behind has a variety of high technology. Subway cars are powered by nuclear energy. Light bulbs are developed that can never burn out. Solar energy is widely used. Complete nutrition is available in pill form. Organ replacement via Formula C3 is in use. Disposable clothing, that can be worn and then washed down the drain, is fashionable. Emotional disorders can be treated electronically via ENT (Electronic Neurological Treatment). 

Burke tells Urko the wonders of his time in “The Trap.”

1982] 

June – Milo, aged 81/2, begins his bareback riding acrobatics with ‘Armando's Old Time Circus’, with political repression, the smaller circuses are forced to play to dwindling country audiences, thus helping Milo avoid dangerous publicity.

1983] 

The year of the Plague.

The Plague kills all the cats and dogs of the world.

“They all died within a few months, eight years ago, every dog and cat in the world. It was like a plague...” Armando tells.

“The disease that killed them was a mysterious virus, brought back from outer space by the astronauts” Armando explains.

The year is based on ‘Conquest’ minus the 1991 movie timeline date. 
Author’s Original Theory: The year of the Plague from space was possibly brought back to Earth by Taylor’s ship the Astræa when it returned from the future with Cornelius, Zira and Milo. When the hatch opened it released a slow-acting air-born virus that germinated and spread from the Upper atmosphere (Many records were lost in the War), before dispersing itself throughout the planet over the years, finally accumulating in concentrated form to cause a worldwide epidemic, infecting and killing all cats and dogs in a matter of weeks.

1984-1991] 

It is during this period of time that the repercussions of the Plague begin to be felt. Humans, to replace their lost pets, turn to keeping small primates, birds, lizards, etc. The primates are found to be the most useful and gradually become the most common household animal. Gradually, larger and larger ones are taken in.

It is in this generation of primates that the Plague's genetic effects show themselves: stature increases and so does intelligence in the larger orders.

–*–
The Government increases to be more and more authoritarian. A reverse migration of people from suburbs into cities results in large towns becoming mostly feudal ports surrounded by farmland; the “provinces.” 

Pollution in many areas is brought under control. A massive air purification plant in the Rockies keeps California air perfectly clean.

However, with this increase in governmental structure a slave class develops: the apes. Ape Management becomes a semi-public branch of the Government in late 1989, and then by 1991 Ape Management becomes a monolith institution, now fully government operated, with a huge range of responsibilities. 

The Ape Management’s training and day-to-day life with humans brings on an acceleration in the mental development of the apes. 

1986] 

A book on brain washing techniques is published. In the years that follow, it is placed into a time capsule where it will be discovered a millennia later by Wanda. 

Wanda discusses the book in “The Interrogation.”
1988] 

January – Jason Breck becomes Governor of New York; he eventually gains more political influence and power and establishes his seat of authority in the newly built suburb of ‘Century City’. By 1989 he helps instigate Ape Management to strengthen his position and control over the state with the hopes of gaining more wealth throughout the country by the use of the ‘Ape Training Centers’

1990] 

Astronauts Colonel William James Richards, Major Kyle Petersen Smith, Major Laureen Anne Harden and Dr. Natalie Almira Merryll are launched by the ANSA’s sixth interstellar space flight the Nemesis, but not to Alpha Centauri. 

Their mission is to go into the future and prevent the destruction of the Earth by reconfiguring the ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb.

From the FanFiction story “Resurrection of the Planet of the Apes” by Peter Karsten.

1991] 

December 31 – Armando and Milo arrive at a North American metropolis known as ‘Century City’ via a helicopter. 

While handing out circus leaflets, Milo observes his fellow apes being treated as slaves and servants of the humans.

After an outburst seeing an ape being beaten Milo runs off.

Armando is arrested and interrogated by Governor Breck.

Milo as instructed by Armando hides in an incoming shipment of orangutans. (Conquest of the Planet of the Apes)
“…after twenty years you’ve picked-up evolved habits from me…” Armando informs.

This date is arrived at because it most closely satisfies both the opening super ‘North America 1991’and the Newscaster’s dialog “…20 years ago…”

It is more than likely that the movie’s date was based on the year of ‘Escape’s’ movie release in 1971. When perhaps it should have been 1993 instead of 1991, which would make more sense.

1992] 

January 1 – The next morning, Milo begins his slave training.

January 2 – Milo is sold to Governor Breck at an ape auction.

Governor Breck shows Milo a dictionary to help him choose a name for himself; Milo selects the name of Caesar.

Governor Breck then orders Caesar to be assigned to ‘Command Post’.

That night, Armando falls to his death during his ‘supposedly’ release from interrogation. Caesar finding this out begins his plans for ‘Ape Revolution’.

January 3 – The next morning, Caesar instigates his fellow apes to begin rebelling; and starts to gather confederate apes, arms and explosives to help the ‘Ape Revolution’.

January 10 – Inspector Kolp realizes that the shipment Caesar came in should have no chimpanzees.

Governor Breck orders Caesar to be brought in.

Caesar is found and is interrogated by an electrical torture device to make him talk.

“Have pity.” Caesar begs.

Inspector Kolp commands that Caesar be electrocuted via Governor Breck’s orders.

MacDonald saves Caesar’s life by tampering with the electrical torture device to help him escape.

Caesar now puts his ‘Ape Revolution’ into action.

Governor Breck orders a ‘shoot to kill’ to contain the ape uprising.

Caesar’s ‘Ape Revolution’ is successful as he captures Breck’s ‘Command Post’ and takes him hostage. (Conquest of the Planet of the Apes)
This date is arrived at because it is assumed that Caesar would take about a week to put his plans into action.
–*–
The fall of Mankind begins. (Conquest of the Planet of the Apes)
1992-2006] 

Within a twelve-year period Caesar helps and leads his people from the city into the provinces.

In this case, upper New York State. Here, Caesar attempts to build and establish a new home for his people with the aid of a few human advisors. Massive educational/agricultural programs within the community are developed. 

They face little harassment within this time because elsewhere in the country and perhaps the rest of the world, the ‘Ape Rebellion’ takes hold and is spreading causing political unrest, tension and instability The Government's breakdown has begun and it cannot police itself as in the past. 

Tension grows, until...

It is not known what happened to Govenor Breck after Century City’s downfall.

2000] 

At some point prior to the Nuclear Holocaust, scientists of the Oakland Science Institute, predicting that Humanity is on the verge of entering a dark age, collects and stores the sum total of Human knowledge in various vaults around the world. Some type of Holocaust occurs on Earth. Human society disintegrates and falls.

2006] 

Nuclear War.

“...the surface of the world was ravaged by the vilest war in human history. The great cities of the world split asunder and were flattened...” Lawgiver.  

“If we shoot, we break twelve years of peace.” Mendez. 

Other timelines put 1992 and 1993 as the year of the nuclear war.

The work of a single madman? International political pressure? Some country taking advantage of a U.S. governmental paralysis? Unknown. It is swift and effective. Satellite based laser defensive systems prevent the war from utterly destroying all life. Major cities are destroyed, but surrounding areas remain liveable. 

Areas around the cities are wastelands for several miles; these areas will eventually be called Forbidden Zones, both due to the radiation (likely neutron bombs were used or even in the future they would be impassable) and the fact that the apes equate human cities with their period of slavery.

2006-2018] 

The human population that remains is in a state of shock. 

There is little or no communication over great distances, so Caesar’s community, now completely isolated, accepts the survivors in its area and a new ape/human society begins to grow. Despite Caesar’s wishes, humans become effectively second-class citizens, and cultural divisions among the apes begin to develop. A gorilla named Aldo declares himself General and begins to train an "army" of gorilla soldiers.

–*–
During this time residual radiation is having its effect on both humans and apes. The Plague-altered genes of the apes increase their already rapid intellectual development, in some cases (i.e., Virgil and Mandemus) incredibly so. Humans tend to become more docile, less given to action when angered. 

It is not clear at this time whether that is a radiation effect, Plague effect or just living with the evolved apes, the weakest of whom could kill the average human easily.

–*–
Meanwhile, another branch of Humanity is developing: the ones that survived the War but stayed in the cities, the Mutants. Inspector Kolp, a former aide to Governor Breck, has taken over in the remains of New York and runs a scavenger city full of repressed hate.

Kolp’s scavengers find the ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb on a wrecked Army Train in the remains of Penn Station. Seeing something that could be useful the weapon is scavenged. Kolp and his people are amazed to find that the weapon is still functional.

2007] 

May 17 – Caesar’s son is born by his wife, Lisa, and is named Cornelius.

Bobby Porter who portrayed Cornelius in ‘Battle’ was born in 1940. So logically I decided to make his character younger to fit this timeline.

2018] 

September 1 – Caesar rules a community (Ape City) of apes and humans that try to live together harmoniously.

MacDonald tells Caesar that in the Archives Section of the dead city (Forbidden City-Century City) near the ‘Command Post’ there are tapes of his mother (Zira) and father (Cornelius), thereby unlocking the secrets of the future.
That evening, Caesar, MacDonald and Virgil get armaments for their journey from Mandemus the keeper of the Armory.

“This armory has been my home for twenty-seven years.” Mandemus tells.

The date is arrived at based on ‘Conquest’ 1991 movie timeline plus the 27 years Mandemus mentions being the keeper of Caesar’s Armory and the fact that MacDonald gave Caesar a report on their Winter supplies, so it is assumed that it might be Autumn. As the community stock up and prepare for the coming months ahead.

September 4 – Three days later, Caesar, Virgil and MacDonald arrive at the dead city.

“…it’s a three day journey…” Virgil informs.

Caesar, Virgil and MacDonald set off a security warning system that alerts Governor Kolp who recognizes Caesar and sends his men to kill them.

Caesar, Virgil and MacDonald get into and out of the Archives Section, discovering that in the future apes will destroy the Earth.

While trying to avoid being shot by Governor Kolp’s men getting out of the city, they also discover that mutants live within it.

Governor Kolp rules the mutants, with Mendez as an advisor.  

Governor Kolp decides to attack Ape City, and orders a scouting party to follow Caesar, Virgil and MacDonald back to find it.
September 7 – Three days later, Caesar, Virgil and MacDonald arrive back at Ape City.

Caesar informs his people at the council meeting that they should be ready for an expected assault from the mutants.

Kolp’s scouts find Caesar’s Ape City and return to tell him the good news.

That night, General Aldo instigates his gorilla troops to take over Ape City and Caesar.

Cornelius, Caesar 's son, overhears this and is fatally wounded by Aldo.

September 8 – Next morning MacDonald suspects that Cornelius’ injuries were not an accident and informs Virgil of his suspicions.

September 10 – Kolp’s scouts return to the dead city and report back to the Governor Kolp of Caesar’s Ape City whereabouts.

Governor Kolp organizes and deploys his army convoy to attack Ape City.

September 13 – In the morning Cornelius dies from his injuries.

Aldo declares martial law and orders all humans rounded up and put into the corral.

Governor Kolp and his troops attack Ape City and are defeated.

While escaping, Governor Kolp is killed by Aldo and his gorillas.

Caesar discovers the truth that Aldo murdered his son Cornelius, and confronts him and Aldo is killed.

The humans living in the Ape City win a slightly ideological victory and temporary equal status with the apes.
Special Note: Alma was instructed by Governor Kolp to launch the ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb at Ape City if he failed to return; Mendez convinces her not to, and begins what will become the Mendez Dynasty. 

The ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb will become the basis of their religion. 

2018-2040] 

The first Ape City grows. 

Caesar rules benevolently and well but human position in the community continues to erode, seemingly without solution. The Forbidden Zone begins to become a real danger as animal and plant mutations get out of hand. 

–*–
In the city of New York, the first Mendez dies, his son by Alma, Mendez II taking over. 

The ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb has become a virtual item of worship to the radiation scarred survivors and their new generation. The city begins to be buried by shifting sands, hiding the outskirts of it from casual view.

On the West Coast, where less radiation is present, Apes and humans have an uneasy civilization where humans are a distinct second class.  Most towns that have sprung up are separated by species, the humans living apart from the Apes.

2040-2052] 

Conditions between apes and humans get worse. 

While educational programs maintain that there is no difference, humans labour under an aura of inferiority. 

Voluntarily, they tend to withdraw from active participation in the council and draw themselves into a community-within-the-community, separated by a river from the apes. It is only partially a ghetto. The level of culture is falling.

–*–
In the city, the Mutant factions have gone to war with one another, the followers of the Gestalt Mind winning out. Mendez and his loyal followers manage to escape into transnational transport tubes and work their way towards an unknown new home. They take with them the Alpha-Omega device, which has begun to carry an almost religious significance with it.

2063] 

August – Lisa dies, at age 90.

In 1975 in Marvel Comics of ‘Planet of the Apes’ magazine (Issue #11). It is stated that Lisa dies in the year 2038. I have adjusted the date to fit around Caesar’s death.
2067] 

May – Caesar dies, at age 93. Not survived by children, his rule is turned over to a council of apes and humans under the leadership of a particularly well-respected orangutan. He and the office are christened “Lawgiver.”

In 1975 in Marvel Comics of ‘Planet of the Apes’ magazine (Issue #11). It is stated that Caesar dies in the year 2040. 

But in the Prologue of ‘Battle for the Planet of the Apes’ dated 2670 the Lawgiver states, “…and now some six hundred years after Caesar’s death...” The oldest known chimpanzee to live (Tarzan’s Cheeta) died at the age of 74, so I added another 19 years to reflect the new species of ‘humanoid apes’ development after the Plague.

2052-2070] 

In Caesar’s Ape City, the one that Taylor will encounter, humans have lost the small equality they received from the time of Caesar’s rule. 

–*–
Succeeding generations of humans have begun to de-evolve and those who can’t speak are little more then beasts, holding onto the barest level of intelligence. Untrainable and wild, they are driven from the city as unproductive creatures.

2070-2220] 

For the next 150 years, both ape and human cultures expand into the Forbidden Zones, taming them, as population needs demand. However, these cultures tend to isolate and grow bitter towards one another.

Clearly, the human and gorilla armies are in their way to war.

–*–
As the Simian culture gradually increases, they develop their own religion, architecture, culture, social structure, medical and agriculture; including maintaining the human weapons and implements left over from the War which the apes adapt for their own use.

–*–
In this period, the Mendez Dynasty is in total control of New York City. They cultivate underground farms and mutant animals. Unlike the apes, they control their population and keep to themselves. 

They have a level of technology that the apes do not. Their entire lives are built around worship of their god, the ‘Alpha Omega’ bomb whose cobalt casing has now been beautified with gold leaf. Only the ruling council knows of the pre-bomb history.

Mixture of their bloodline with the local mutants begins to produce rudimentary telepathic powers.

Humans, devolving due to the radiation, are becoming more barbaric. A sudden, fierce strain develops out of the docility in evidence just after the War. 

2220-2750] 

After the war between Humans and Apes to decide supremacy, the humans were defeated and become primarily a slave culture tolerated but completely un-respected by the apes. Gorillas dominate the apes now, and it is an age of exploration. Populations push out in all directions. 

Land is tamed and with human slave labour, cultivated. New outposts are set up and contact is made with other surviving groups from the War. 

A few minor skirmishes are caused by gorilla aggressiveness, but on the whole, however, there is peace as energies are channelled into retaking and developing a world for simian rule. 

–*–
The cultural heritage of Caesar's Ape City gains a widespread usage and regional governments are often designed after the Lawgiver/Council mould.

On the West Coast Humans have lost any status in Ape Culture and become, primarily, a slave culture tolerated but completely lacking any respect by the apes.
2503] 

New York exists as a futuristic metropolis.

This is apocryphal. The movie series establishes that the atomic war occurred in the early 2000s.     Please refer to contradictions below.

It is also possible that the picture/photograph which Virdon and Burke saw in Farrow’s book, was a futurisic version/vision, a projection of what New York may look like in the future at the time of the book’s publication, which of course was before the war, due to Mankind’s current prosperity. 

2750-3085] 

Due to one particularly daring raid, a large group of wild (barbaric) humans being a menace to ape agriculture causes an outraged public cry from the apes. Systematic destruction of these wild (barbaric) humans is instituted. 

–*–
The general spread of the Sacred Scrolls proves to be a reactionary move, and their influence reinstates the earlier days of isolation. When growth has slowed in the previous century, orangutans take more and more of the power formerly in the hands of the gorillas. Now they rule completely.

–*–
The loss of communication between population centres is slow at first but speeds up when Forbidden Zones start to become unliveable again; this restricts travel between the various Ape States.

This time, it is largely the result of poor conservation techniques. The radiation-blasted soil starts to give up and the deserts begin to bloom once again.

Cultural patterns in the isolated areas retain shards and snippets of others. Thus, one area might continue to have the Lawgiver officer, while another might operate completely differently. 

–*–
Mankind grows completely docile. 

The Caesar’s Ape City near New York City becomes isolated since orangutan leaders want to keep their area pure of outside thought.  These rulers are one of the few who still harbour the secret that man once ruled the planet.

2778] 

Simian Civilisation reaches a new cultural/philosophical level. The Lawgiver of the day writes the Sacred Scrolls and their rather unflattering portrait of Humanity. 

The Sacred Scrolls are carried to other parts of the United States by ape traders.
“When were those Sacred Scrolls of yours written?” Taylor asks.

“Twelve hundred years ago.” Zaius answers.

The year is taken from (Planet) 3978 minus 1200 years for this timeline date.
2785] 

The early part of the Ornan Period, a fever, which struck only the human population, killed several hundred people in a section of the rural zone. The entire sector became barren for years afterward. 

This was described in “The Cure.” It is impossible to accurately pinpoint the exact date of “The Ornan Period.” The implication is that it occurred hundreds of years in the past and was not common knowledge to the ape population at large. So I think it would be safe to say that this incident happened about 300 years ago.

2985] 

Apes raided the village of Borak for Human slaves. Many beings were killed on both sides. Finally a meeting arranged and an agreement was reached. The Humans would provide five slaves twice a month during the Autumn* months for work in the mines. 
Brun describes this sad history in “The Liberator.” He states that this happened “a long, long time ago”. His ceremony is described as being done in the fashion of “Our fathers and our father’s father.” It can be postulated that this happened a century previously before the living-memory of anyone in the village. It can be presumed that it occurred within three or four generations.

*Originally it was Summer, but I changed it to Autumn.

3016] 

October 5 – Barlow is born. 

This is based on John Hoyt’s age in 1974, subtracted from 3085, Hoyt was actually born in 1905.

Barlow is included because he encountered the fugitives twice and is an established character in the  mythos.

3034] 

March 8 – Zaius is born. 

This is based on Booth Coleman’s age in 1974, subtracted from 3085, Coleman was actually born in 1923.
3035] 

October 15 – Urko is born. 

This is based on Mark Lenard’s age in 1974, subtracted from 3085, Lenard was actually born in 1924.
3060] 

Barlow becomes Prefect for the Human settlement of Kaymak. He introduces gladiatorial combat to channel the aggressive impulses of Humans. Soon after Tolar falls in love and sires a son. 

Barlow states in “The Gladiators” that he has been Prefect for 25 years. Tolar states that Dalton’s mother was interested in him because of the games.

3061] 

September 17 – Galen is born in Central City to Ann and Yalu. 

This is an inference. Roddy McDowell was 46 in 1974, his actual date of birth is 1928.This would hardly qualify him as “a young Chimp.” I estimate that Galen is 24. This is an age when people are establishing themselves in society. The names of Galen’s parents come from “The Interrogation.”

–*–
Urko, Aboro and Bulta enter the academy together. 

Strangely enough, Both Mark Lenard (Urko) and Percy Rodrigues (Aboro) were born in the same year. Hence, Urko and Aboro are the same age!

3065] 

Aboro is caught cheating in the final days of his senior year. He is sent to remote Hathor to serve as District Chief. The blot on his record prevents his promotion.

Aboro remarks that the incident occurred twenty years ago in “The Tyrant.” The fact that he was not drummed out of the service implies that he was near the end of his studies.
–*–
Urko and Bulta graduate from the academy.

3070] 

Nine year old Galen and his cousin, Augustus, steal apples from a neighbor’s tree.

Galen reminisces about this with Augustus in “The Tyrant.”
–*–
Zaius joins the High Council.

This occurs prior to the beginning of the series.

–*–
General Urko is appointed Chief of Security.

This occurs prior to the beginning of the series.

3073] 

The Pegasus  crash-lands on Earth. Astronauts Lieutenant John Van Lowen and Lieutenant Terry Maxwell survive but Colonel Edward Jackson dies from severe injuries. Zaius, a member of the Ape High Council, wants to question the two astronauts, but General Urko, The Chief of security, has them killed.

Zaius says that Human astronauts from the past crashed “more than ten years ago.” Twelve years sounds like a fair estimate for this length of time.

3080] 

Chimpanzee Anto, eldest son of Polar, begins to anxiously wait for a male calf to be born so that he may start his own farm.

Anto says that he has been waiting for five years in “The Good Seeds.”

3081] 

Galen and Kira become engaged. For undisclosed reasons, they do not get married.

Galen and Kira infer that they broke off the engagement in recent years.
3082] 

Dr. Kira experiments with blood transfusions unsuccessfully.

Kira notes that she attempted a blood transfusion a few years ago.

3083] 

July – Farrow discovers the bomb shelter “about two years ago.” He tells Burke and Virdon this in June of 3085.

3085] 

June 14 – Escape From Tomorrow. The Hyperion reentries and crash-lands on Earth outside the Human settlement of Chailo, in the region of the United States that was once south-western California. Astronauts Colonel Alan Virdon and Major Peter Burke survive, but Major Stephen Jones dies in the crash. At this time the ape government, which rules over most of the area, is an orangutan faction headed by Councillor Zaius. General Urko, a gorilla, works cooperatively with him; with continual "reminding" that Zaius is in charge. Urko chafes at the situation. To Zaius and Urko, the constant threat of the renegade astronauts starting a human rebellion. 

The date above is from the Hyperion’s chronometer when it crash-landed back to Earth.

The humans within the TV Series haven’t de-evolved as quickly as those on the East Coast, where more bombs fell; this could partly be explained by the air plants in the Rocky Mountains. (No one knows how long the air plants ran after the war ended) Which left the apes with the task of apprehending and executing them. (Live action TV Series)

June 16 – Burke and Virdon are captured by Urko and Galen.

June 17 – Burke and Virdon are set up to be “shot while trying to escape”. Galen accidentally kills Urko’s Lieutenant in a struggle.

June 24 – Virdon, Burke and Galen begin their adventures together. 

The astronauts gain the chimpanzee Galen as a friend and travelling companion. Between them they leave a few traces of twentieth century human culture, like certain agricultural and farming techniques, that don't do much good for the humans but eventually serve to advance ape civilization. 

(Live action TV Series)

Virdon remarks that it has been a week since they escaped.

July – The Gladiators. Burke estimates they are North of San Francisco. A Human kills Urko’s Lieutenant, Jason. Urko holds Barlow responsible for Jason’s death and transfers him to the remote outpost of Venton.

TheTrap. Burke, Virdon and Galen are near the village of Numai. This is near ancient ruins of San Francisco.

The Good Seeds. Burke, Virdon and Galen go to Polar’s farm. The farm is “four day’s hard ride from Central City. The travelers spend two weeks here so that Galen's leg can mend.

August – The Legacy. Burke, Virdon and Galen enter the ruins of Ancient Oakland.
Tomorrow’s Tide. Burke, Virdon and Galen approach the Pacific Ocean. Burke speculates that it could be Malibu, Pismo Beach or Paradise Cove.

The Surgeon. Virdon is shot by a Gorilla patrol. Galen and Burke take him to a medical center outside Central City.

The Deception. The trio befriend a blind female chimp named Fauna whose father has been killed, supposedly by humans. Fauna develops a crush on Burke while the trio deal with vigilante apes known as ‘Dragoons’.

September – The Horse Race. Burke, Virdon and Galen enter the village of Venton. After winning the wager with Urko, Barlow, along with Martin and Gregor, return to Kaymak.

The Interrogation. Burke is captured and taken to Central City. Urko goes on an inspection tour of the outer provinces.

The Tyrant. Virdon, Burke and Galen enter the village of Hathor.

The Cure. Virdon, Burke and Galen enter the village of Trion. Virdon meets Amy. One week later the group leaves the village.

–*–
Yalu, Galen’s father is recently elected to the High Council. 

Galen learns of this happening recently in “The Interrogation.”

–*–
Wanda discovers an ancient book on brainwashing techniques in a time capsule from the late 20th century. 

Wanda states the book was recently discovered in “The Interrogation.”

–*–
October – The Liberator. It is Autumn. Virdon, Burke and Galen approach the village of Borak.
Originally it is suppose to be Summer, but I changed it to Autumn, to fit this timeline.

Up above the world so high. Virdon, Burke and Galen are near the sea.

The Hostage.* The United Freedom Force, a radical group of humans and apes, kidnap a daughter of a prominent Ape family. Virdon offers to negotiate for the daughter’s release.

A Fallen God.*  Virdon, Burke and Galen come to a town. To avoid suspicion from the local preacher, Syrinx; Alan and Peter go to work on a farm owned by Telemon, a local farmer. Once there Vidon spies Telemon’s family praying to their altar which contains a radio transmitter.

* These stories come from scripts that were developed for the Live action TV Series, that can be found on Hunter Goatley’s website.

November – The Trek.** An ethnic minority tribe has been on the run and hiding for years. It has been guilty of resisting the Apes and was ordered exterminated. Virdon, Burke and galen become involved with this tribe; which has two choices: fight the Apes and go down fighting or seek a better life beyond the Forbidden Zone.

Freedom Road.** Odin, a human saves one of the astroauts and thus could be idenified to the local Gorilla Prefect for helping the figitives. The Perfect offers amnesty for information about the figitives, so Galen visits him to see if it is legitimate. But he tells Galen that various humans have been disappearing; so after the Prefect himself goes missing, Virdon, Burke and Galen investigate.
The Mine.** Our trio comes upon advanced technology in the form of a water-driven mill. The architect is an old man who once visited a super-civilization; this information could lead the astronauts a way home, but the old man is being forced to work in a salt mine. The astronauts are captured while trying to rescue the old man, so Galen in the guise of a government inspector attempts to free them.

The Trial.**  In a highly productive village, a nasty Gorilla hazes a human in the fields. Virdon attempts to help the human, but gets into a struggle with the Gorilla, who is accidentally shot. Burke and Galen raise doubts about Alan’s guilt, which are supported by the villagers threatening to stop work if Virdon is unfairly punished. So the Commanding Gorilla agrees to a trial. Can Burke and Galen find the real killer?

** These are story synopses that could have been developed into srcipts for the Live action TV Series. They can be found in Simian Scrolls #12.

3085-3479] 

The fall of Mankind is complete. 

–*–
By approximately 3400, the combination of radiation deterioration and general demoralization succeeds in wiping the minds from Humanity. 

They are forced away from the ape cities as unproductive and useless animals. They begin to live in the forests, wild and resort to primitives.
Even on the West Coast, humans have degraded to the status of dumb beasts. Gorillas, having no other enemies, hunt them and they are used in scientific and medical experiments.

3115] 

April 10 – Astronauts Colonel William Richards, Major Kyle Smith, Major Laureen Harden and Dr. Natalie Merryll, in the Nemesis re-enters the Solar System on its way back to Earth.

Virdon spots a satellite orbiting the Earth during the night and decides to go to Cape Kennedy to see if it was launched from there.

April 13 – The Nemesis orbits the Earth.
Virdon, Burke, Galen and Lucian journey through the Eastern Forbidden Zone to head for Cape Kennedy.

April 14 – The Nemesis lands at Cape Kennedy.

April 28 – The Nemesis crew reactivate the hidden Facility at Cape Kennedy.

June 5 – The Nemesis crew go to New York to reconfigure the ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb, which is done successfully, located at St Patrick’s Cathedral.
June 24 – Virdon, Burke, Galen and Lucian reach Cape Kennedy, and meet the Nemesis crew.

June 26 – Urko is killed in an ambush set up by the Nemesis crew and the fugitives after following them to Cape Kennedy, but before he dies he kills Smith.

September 1 – Along with Harden, Virdon, Burke and Galen on the Nemesis return home after 30 years on the planet of the apes.

3479-3979] 

Continually encroaching Forbidden Zones have brought on a complete Dark Age. 

–*–
Progress slows to a halt in some areas, like the New York Ape City. There, all knowledge that humans once had a major civilization is lost; it becomes mere legend and then almost nothing at all. It is either lost or concealed by the ruling conservative orangutans who still retain any or some knowledge of this time. 

Progressive chimpanzee elements are stifled.

Late in this period humans begin to be used as experimental animals and entertaining hunting diversions for the gorillas. A certain instinctive survival pattern remains in the humans but it is less than successful. 

3651] 

August 6 – Astronauts Captain Bill Hudson, Lieutenant Jeff Allen, and Lieutenant Judy Franklin in the Venturer crash-land in a lagoon southwest of New York. While traversing the desert, Franklin disappears into a chasm that mysteriously closes in on itself. Allen and Hudson continue on to find a forested glade inhabited by savage humans. 

The date above was taken from the Venturer’s chronometer before it crashed-landed.

In a raid by gorilla soldiers, Allen is captured along with several of the primitive humans. Shortly thereafter, he escapes and along with Hudson, returns to the Forbidden Zone. There, they discover the now buried ruins of New York City. After finding Franklin whom the mysterious ‘Underdwellers’ worship as a prophetess “Usa” (taken from a relic they have, a marble bust of a female astronaut bearing Judy's likeness with the sole word “USA” on the bottom...). Together, the three eventually elude the apes while helping both the mutants of the dead city and the humans. (Animated TV Series)
It is unknown as to what eventually became of the astronauts. 

3911] 

June 3 – Zaius (Doctor) is born.

This is based on Maurice Evans’ age in 1968 (Planet); minus the 3978 movie timeline date. Evans was actually born in 1901.
3944] 

January 10 – Milo is born.

This is based on Sal Mineo’s age in 1971 (Escape); minus the 3978 movie timeline date minus(–2) years. Mineo was actually born in 1939.
I decided to make Milo a little older to reflect his wisdom and give him the age of 34, which I think is just right for Mineo’s character. You could definitely say that Milo was a ‘chimp’ prodigy of his time.

I have included Milo because he is a link between ‘Beneath’ and ‘Escape’. Even though he only appeared in ‘Escape’.

3946] 

September 17 – Cornelius is born.

This is based on Roddy McDowell’s age in 1968 (Planet); minus the 3978 movie timeline date plus   (+ 8) years. McDowall was actually born in 1928.
Interesting to note that McDowall is younger than Hunter, thus I decided to make Cornelius older and give him the age of 32, which I think is just right for McDowall’s character.

3948] 

August 12 – Zira is born.

This is based on Kim Hunter’s age in 1968 (Planet); minus the 3978 movie timeline date plus (+ 16) years. Hunter  was actually born in 1922.
I decided to make Zira younger and give her the age of 30, which I think is just right for Hunter’s character.

3955] 

July 24 – Nova is born. 

This is based on Linda Harrison’s age in 1968 (Planet); minus the 3978 movie timeline date. Harrison was actually born in 1945.
3978] 

January – Cornelius conducts his first archaeological expedition into the Forbidden Zone. (Planet)
June 5 – Cornelius and Zira get married.

This is based on Zira’s pregnancy period, give or take a week.

November 25 – The Astræa crash-lands in an inland sea somewhere in the area south of what was once Long Island. Astronauts Colonel George Taylor, Major Robert Landon, Lieutenant Mathew Dodge survive, but Lieutenant Catherine Stewart dies in hibernation. Landmasses have shifted so that there is no longer ocean. 

The date above was taken from Astræa’s chronometer when it crash-landed. Another date was mentioned in ‘Beneath’ 3955 as the correct date for ‘Planet’, which I have discounted because I believe it is wrong, (although a lot of POTA fans except this date) and must have been a mistake. I think the people at 20th Century Fox just forgot the original date and made up a new one. 

November 28 – The astronauts’ journey across the barren desert (The Forbidden Zone) to a forested area, where they find representatives of what was once the human race. In a gorilla raid, Taylor and Landon are captured but are separated, and Dodge is killed. (Planet of the Apes)

“We have food and water enough for three days…”  “…If there’s no life here, we’ve got just seventy-two hours to find it…” Taylor remarks. 

This date is arrived at under the assumption that the two sunsets/sunrises shown constitute the passing of three days, in whole or in part.

December 19 – Taylor speaks for the first time. (Planet of the Apes) 

This date is arrived at under the assumption that, on average, it takes about three weeks for a simple gunshot wound to heal.

December 20 – Cornelius visits Dr. Milo and tells him of Taylor's extraordinary story. 

December 25 – After finding out more about Taylor, Dr. Milo heads for the Forbidden Zone to find out for himself if the story of Taylor’s arrival is true.
December 28 – Dr. Milo arrives at Dead Lake and finds the rubber life raft and the American flag.
3979] 

January 1 – After about five days of searching Dr. Milo find Taylor's ship the Astræa during a period of low tide lodged on a sand bar and retrieves the Flight Manual and Checklists for study. He begins the journey back to Ape City for equipment to salvage the ship proper.

January 4 – Dr. Milo returns to Ape City and later that day carefully begins to gather the equipment and horses needed to salvage the Astræa.
January 7 – Dr. Milo heads back to Dead Lake with 12 horses and a wagon full of equipment.
January 10 – Dr. Milo returns to the site of the Astræa and waits for low tide the next day to begin his salvage attempt.

January 11 – After several attempts, Dr. Milo's 12 horses pull the Astræa off the sand bar and onto shore for further study.
January 12 – Using the information in the Flight Manual and Checklists, Dr. Milo is able to revive the ship's onboard computer systems.

January 14 – Dr. Milo accesses the Astræa’s main computer and learns more of how it is operated.
January 20 – Discovering Taylor's unique intelligence, Taylor is brought before the High Tribunal; during a mock trial Taylor discovers that Landon has undergone brain surgery, leaving him a mental vegetable. 

Zira and Cornelius are accused of heresy, and help Taylor and Nova escape. 

(Planet of the Apes)

“It’s been weeks.  What happened?” Taylor questions. 

This date is arrived at because, according to the script: “Four weeks and three days, and not a word from anyone…” Taylor queries. 

January 21 – The next morning Zira, Lucius, Taylor and Nova meet Cornelius near the hunting grounds and they head for the Forbidden Zone to the site of an archaeological expedition conducted by Cornelius. (Planet of the Apes)
“You’re going back to the Forbidden Zone?” Taylor asks.

“We’re going back to the diggings I worked out over a year ago.” – Cornelius responds.

Dr. Zaius with a squad of gorillas heads to the Forbidden Zone to find the fugitives.
General Ursus sends his scouts into another part of the Forbidden Zone to find the fugitives or any sign of a human colony that Taylor may have come from.

Milo completely reactivates the Astræa.
January 22 – The first of General Ursus' gorilla scouts goes missing in the Forbidden Zone.
January 24 – Cornelius, Zira, Lucius, Taylor and Nova reach the archaeological dig site. They are followed. Taylor and Nova escape from Zaius and the gorilla patrols farther into the Forbidden Zone. There, Taylor discovers the Statue of Liberty and that he has in fact returned to Earth. (Planet of the Apes)

“It’s a three day ride across the desert…” Cornelius tells.
During return trip to Ape City Dr. Zaius strikes a deal with Cornelius and Zira. They agree to be silent about Taylor and their discoveries in return for clemency.
More of General Ursus’ gorilla scouts go missing within the Forbidden Zone.
January 25 – As Taylor and Nova ride across the desert, a wall of fiery illusion, a lightning storm and an earthquake appear and then disappear suddenly. Then a rock wall appears before Taylor who vanishes through it, along with the wall. Nova sets out for Ape City to find Zira. 

This date is arrived at under the assumption that the sunset/sunrise shown constitutes the passing of one day, in whole or in part.

–*–
The Aurora crash-lands and Major Brent is the only survivor. (Colonel Maddox is rendered blind from the fires and damage of the ship and soon after succumbs to his injuries, and Major Brent buries him). He encounters Nova, lost after Taylor's strange disappearance. (Beneath the Planet of the Apes)
When Brent looked at his ship’s chronometer before re-entry the time read 3955, (I would put this down as computer malfunction) as he told Maddox in ‘Beneath’ when it really was 3979.

“…Earth time reading just before re-entry…3955”. Brent informs Maddox.

The Aurora following the Astræa’s flight path would probably arrive two months later after its launch date.

January 26 – One of General Ursus' scouts’ returns from the Forbidden Zone; evidently tortured and delirious, General Ursus uses the incident to declare martial law and begins campaigning for war.
Dr. Milo journeys back to Ape City for supplies and fully confident that he can get the Astræa to fly.
January 27 – Dr. Zaius, Cornelius and Zira return to Ape City from the Forbidden Zone; to find Ape City is awash in political and chimpanzee undercurrents.

Upon his return Dr. Zaius has succeeded in quashing the ripples caused by Taylor's appearance and abilities, but is unable to stop General Ursus campaigning for his war into the Forbidden Zone, which is beyond his control. 

Dr. Zaius allows Cornelius and Zira to read the secret scrolls to show them the true evil of man.

–*–
January 28 – Brent and Nova arrive at Ape City to find Zira and Cornelius; who are then captured by gorillas. (Beneath the Planet of the Apes)
January 29 – The next morning, Nova and Brent escape while being taken for target practice, during pursuit by gorillas they hide in the subway ruins of New York City.

Dr. Milo returns and tells Cornelius and Zira about the Astræa. Sensing the doom of the war’s outcome the trio hurriedly gather what supplies they can carry and make haste back to the Forbidden Zone to the Astræa.

General Ursus and Dr. Zaius lead the gorilla war party into the Forbidden Zone.

After some rest Brent and Nova travel down the subway to continue to find Taylor and get away from the gorilla patrol still looking for them. (Beneath the Planet of the Apes)

January 30 – By travelling at night to make up some time, Dr. Milo, Cornelius and Zira arrive somewhat fatigued without if any sleep and begin their pre-launch checklist for flight of the Astræa.

We know from statements that Milo is brilliant, but unlike Cornelius, who was an Archaeologist, we don’t know what Milo’s specialty was. From his musings in ‘Escape’, it is possible he was a mathematician. Perhaps he discovered some information (possibly aided by Cornelius’discussions with Taylor) in the Forbidden Zone that helped him in his work with the Astræa? Either way, his launching of it was an exceptionally brave thing, since Apes did not believe flight was possible.

The only way Milo, Cornelius and Zira could have reached the Astræa in two days was to travel/ride non-stop. Since 72 hours equals 3 days, and allowing 24 hours for sleeping total under normal conditions. This would mean that Milo, Cornelius and Zira had no sleep or barely little (perhaps while riding) by reaching the Astræa in a flat 48 hours straight, which equals 2 days.

Brent and Nova travel through the ruins of New York City and eventually find various tunnels and investigate.

Brent is interrogated by the mutants and tells them the apes will attack their city.

The gorilla war party headed by General Ursus ride up over a rise and sees the ruins of New York City.

The mutants have their final ceremonial worship in the cathedral to their “God” (The ‘Alpha-Omega’ Doomsday bomb).
Brent and Taylor are induced to fight through telepathy.

The gorilla war party enters New York City to begin their assault.

Taylor activates the ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb, destroying the Earth.

“…burn the planet to a cinder…”, Taylor comments.

The ‘Alpha-Omega’ nuclear bomb, originally stored in the vaults of a San Francisco missile complex and cherished by twenty generations by the House of Mendez, is detonated while in St Patrick's Cathedral in the ruins of New York City.
“But we saw the Earth destroyed…” Cornelius explains. (Escape From the Planet of the Apes) 

–*–
A catalytic reaction spreads across the globe in minutes. Shockwaves of the blast are sent into space and strike the spacecraft containing Doctors Milo, Cornelius and Zira. The ship is thrown into a Hasslein Curve, ‘a bend in time’, and cast back to... 

(Escape From the Planet of the Apes)



Author’s Note:
As stated above the Earth has been destroyed, but with my Fan Fiction story “Resurrection of the Planet of the Apes” the ‘Alpha-Omega’ bomb was successfully re-configured; thus the bomb did go off, but it only destroyed everything within a 25 mile radius. So what Doctors’ Milo, Cornelius and Zira really saw (perhaps not very clearly and so presumed) was a very bright flash on the surface of the planet, which they could’ve interpreted as the destruction of the Earth that didn’t happen.

Author’s Special Note:
Disclaimer: This POTA Timeline is a composite from all material given and or researched by me to complete and or arrange in my vision/version of the POTA chronology as I see it. I make no claim to its contents other than artistic layout to present this POTA Timeline for reading and viewing. All reference material for this POTA Timeline is stated below.
TV-Series (Live Action/Animated) & Movie Timelines retrieved from:

www.wikipedia.org 

www.goingfaster.com/icarus
www.theforbidden-zone.com
www.groups.yahoo.com/group.PotaFanFiction
www.movies.groups.yahoo.com/group/pota/database
www.movies.groups.yahoo.com/group/Apecalypse_Now/database
www.hq.nasa.gov/office/pao/History/factsheet 

Including other NASA material on their website.

‘Apeline One’ by Tiziano Caliendo.

‘POTA Movie Timeline’ by HotScheetz@aol.com
‘Chronology’ by jamesa1102

